
 

 
 

CITY OF MCMINNVILLE 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

231 NE FIFTH STREET 
MCMINNVILLE, OR  97128 

503-434-7311 
 

www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov 

MCMINNVILLE URBAN RENEWAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Community Development Center, 231 NE 5th Street 

Wednesday, August 5, 2020, 4:00 – 5:00 PM 
 

ZOOM Meeting:  You may join online via the following link: 
https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/98826161932?pwd=bU9xRStURkdWZ09EMmFRUWNPR29ZUT09 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS  ITEM 

Walt Gowell 
Chair 

Wendy Stassens 
Vice-Chair 

Ossie Bladine 

Alan Fox 

Ed Gormley 

Peter Kircher 

Kelly McDonald 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

John Dietz. MW&L 
Ex-Officio 

Scott Hill, Mayor 
Ex-Officio 

Dave Rucklos, MDA 
Ex-Officio 

  
1. Call to Order / Introductions 
 
2. Citizen Comments 
 
3. Minutes: 

• May 6, 2020 (Exhibit 1) 
 

4. Action items 
• COVID Recovery Façade Improvement Grant (Exhibit 2) 

 
5. Discussion Items 

• EDA Project Proposal – Third Street Improvement Project 
(Exhibit 3) 

• Property Assistance Contract Clawback Provision 
 

6. Commissioner/Committee Member Comments 
 

7. Staff Comments 
 

8. Adjournment 
 

Please Note that this meeting will be conducted via ZOOM meeting software due 
to the COVID-19 event. 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/98826161932?pwd=bU9xRStURkdWZ09EMmFR
UWNPR29ZUT09  
Meeting ID: 988 2616 1932  
Passcode: 982235  

By Phone Only:  +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

 
 
 

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/
https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/98826161932?pwd=bU9xRStURkdWZ09EMmFRUWNPR29ZUT09
https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/98826161932?pwd=bU9xRStURkdWZ09EMmFRUWNPR29ZUT09
https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/98826161932?pwd=bU9xRStURkdWZ09EMmFRUWNPR29ZUT09


Zoom meeting software can be downloaded for free on both a computer and a cell phone.  
If you do not have access to either a computer or a cell phone access to a computer to 
participate in the meeting can be provided at the Community Development Center.  
Please call the Planning Department at (503) 434-7311 for assistance at least 48 hours 
in advance of the meeting.  Seating will be provided on a first-come, first-served basis 
and will meet social distancing requirements.. 
 
These documents are also available on the City’s website www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov; 
click on Government, click on Boards and Commissions, click on McMinnville Urban 
Renewal Advisory Committee.  You may also request a copy from the Planning 
Department at the Community Development Center, 231 NE 5th Street, 503-434-7311. 

 

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/


City of McMinnville 
Planning Department 

231 NE Fifth Street 
McMinnville, OR  97128 

(503) 434-7311 
 

www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov 

EXHIBIT 1 - MINUTES 
 
 
May 6, 2020 4:00pm 
McMinnville Urban Renewal Advisory Committee Community Development Center 
Regular Meeting McMinnville, Oregon 
 
Members Present: Walt Gowell, Alan Fox, Ed Gormley, Wendy Stassens, and Kelly 

McDonald, Ossie Bladine 
Members Absent: Peter Kircher 
Ex-Officios Present: Scott Hill, Dave Rucklos and John Dietz 
Staff Present: Heather Richards – Planning Director  
Guests Present: Kellie Menke – City Councilor, and Larry Sherwood, Engineering 

Services Manager 
 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Introductions 

 
Chair Gormley called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 

2. Citizen Comments – None  
 
3. Minutes 
 

• November 6, 2019 
• January 8, 2020 

 
Committee Member Gormley moved to approve the November 6, 2019 and January 8, 2020 
minutes. The motion was seconded by Committee Member McDonald and passed 
unanimously.  

 
4. Urban Renewal Projects Discussions/Update 
 

• Alpine Avenue – Lighting Specifications 
 
Planning Director Richards said some projects were moving forward on Alpine Avenue, the 
Boutique Retreat on the corner of 9th and Alpine and the dentistry project on the corner of 
9th and Lafayette. For those projects 9th Avenue would be improved and streetscape 
improvements would be included. In these improvements, there was a call out for pedestrian 
lighting as a principle in the NE Gateway District Plan. There was no type specified for the 
pedestrian lighting. There had been dialogue internally about what it would look like and 
staff was bringing it forward to the Committee for more dialogue.  

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/


McMinnville Urban Renewal Advisory Committee 2 May 6, 2020 
 

 
Larry Sherwood said if they used the decorative style on 3rd or extended the Alpine Avenue 
style, the cost would be a wash. The decorative lighting downtown was charged at a 
premium cost. The cobra lights were not at pedestrian scale. They were talking about lights 
at each intersection and mid-block. 
 
John Dietz, McMinnville Water & Light, said the decorative lights cost about $32 per month 
and LED lights would be about $8 per month. The decorative lights were 150 watts and 
standard overhead LED would be 100 watts. There were two styles of decorative, one was 
a lantern style and the other was an overhung style. 
 
Planning Director Richards clarified Alpine already had lights. These would be for all the 
other local streets in the district. 
 
Chair Gowell thought they should keep the lights consistent with what was on Alpine. 
 
Committee Member Stassens thought that would help with district identity. 
 
Mayor Hill said a lot of time had been put in with the architects to create a specific place that 
would be recognized. They were trying to create a bond between the NE Gateway District 
and 3rd Street and it ought to all flow together. 
 
Committee Member McDonald was in support of the specialty lighting. He thought it would 
be more aesthetic to be a little different from Alpine Avenue. He thought they should find 
something compatible, but not the exact design. 
 
Committee Member Gormley wanted to know the costs and if it would be in the City’s budget. 
 
Planning Director Richards clarified right now they would only be putting in one light and 
over time as the area was built out more would be put in. 
 
Mayor Hill said it came down to creating a sense of place and he thought it could be added 
to the budget. 
 
Councilor Menke asked if there was another option that would not be such a high cost. She 
liked the idea of having nicer lights, but she questioned the cost. 
 
Planning Director Richards said the light fixture itself would be paid for by the developer, it 
was the cost of the McMinnville Water & Light yearly rate. 
 
Mr. Dietz said the ongoing maintenance and replacement of the decorative lights was 
expensive. The lifespan was about 20 to 25 years. The problem with those types of lights 
was over time the finish failed. 
 
Planning Director Richards said some Urban Renewal were paying for replacement 
products to help off-set future maintenance costs on projects they were building in the areas 
they were trying to revitalize.  
 



McMinnville Urban Renewal Advisory Committee 3 May 6, 2020 
 

Committee Member Gormley moved to recommend one specialty light on 9th Avenue that 
mimicked the Alpine Avenue lights. The motion was seconded by Committee Member 
McDonald and passed unanimously. 
 
Larry Sherwood said all of the lights on Alpine were maintained by the City and McMinnville 
Water & Light did not want to add another style of lighting fixture on their inventory. Whatever 
lights they chose they had to make sure there was capacity in the infrastructure to serve 
them. He thought they probably did have the infrastructure. They not only wanted to pick 
something affordable but also easily obtainable.  
 
Planning Director Richards would bring a design proposal back to the Committee. They 
would need to make sure not to pick something that was extreme in design. 
 
• Third Street Streetscape Improvement Project  
 
Planning Director Richards said the recommendation of the consultant was to pause this 
project for a couple of months due to Covid because the next discussion would need 
community involvement. 

 
Dave Rucklos, Executive Director of McMinnville Downtown Association, was also in favor 
of pausing the project, especially when they did not know the impact of Covid on downtown 
businesses and budgets. 
 
There was consensus to pause the project. 
 
Planning Director Richards discussed emergency business assistance. There was about 
$15,000 of accrued interest that could be used for an assistance program. 
 
There was discussion regarding leveraging those dollars to help with another program. 
 
Planning Director Richards said there were communities who were using Urban Renewal 
funds for grants or loans for business assistance. The funds were from interest earned on 
the tax increment from the bank. They were going after other funds for emergency business 
assistance to bring to the community and the small local businesses were struggling to 
access the bigger programs based on capacity. There might be an opportunity to leverage 
Urban Renewal funds to bring technical assistance to those businesses so they could 
access those programs. 
 
Committee Member Gormley said several of the companies who were failing to get the loans 
had no banking relationships. 
 
Planning Director Richards said the program they were looking at was a program for the 
non-bankable businesses. The Community Development Financial Institute would be doing 
the review and underwriting for the businesses and Urban Renewal would provide the loan 
lost reserves to mitigate risk so that these businesses that were more marginal could be 
successful. 
 
Committee Member Gormley suggested the money be spent on coaching and business 
advice on how to secure financing. 



McMinnville Urban Renewal Advisory Committee 4 May 6, 2020 
 

 
Committee Member McDonald asked how quickly they could mobilize a program. Planning 
Director Richards said if they needed a decision before the Committee’s next meeting, they 
could call a special meeting for it. 
 
Councilor Stassens was in favor of looking into using the funds for coaching. 
 
There was consensus for staff to put together a proposal for the Committee to consider. 
 

5. Committee Member Comments 
 

Committee Gormely discussed closing 3rd Street to vehicles to help businesses open up and 
maintain social distancing, especially for serving food. He was in support of the idea.  
 
Mr. Rucklos said he would be meeting with the City on Friday to discuss the option. This 
was to be prepared for the phase 1 reopening and to have designated days for the closures, 
especially Friday and Saturday. He thought it would be a good test and would inform future 
streetscape discussions.  
 

6. Staff Comments 
 
Planning Director Richards asked for a volunteer to work through loan agreement issues 
with the Bindery project. Committee Members Fox and McDonald volunteered. 
 
Committee Member Fox said he had been advocating for getting truck traffic off of Main 
Street in Carlton and three weeks ago the City Council voted to reroute trucks off of Main 
Street. This would open the way for the kinds of things they were talking about, such as 
closing it down for festivals and markets.  
 

7. Adjournment 
 
Chair Gowell adjourned the meeting at 4:46 p.m. 



 
 

 P a g e  | 1 

City of McMinnville 
Planning Department 

231 NE Fifth Street 
McMinnville, OR  97128 

(503) 434-7311 
www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov 

 

 
EXHIBIT 2 - STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE: August 5, 2020  
TO: McMinnville Urban Renewal Advisory Committee Members 
FROM: Heather Richards, Planning Director 
SUBJECT: COVID Recovery Façade Improvement Grant 
 
STRATEGIC PRIORITY & GOAL:  

 
 
 
Report in Brief:   
 
This is the consideration of ten applications for the COVID Business Recovery Façade Improvement 
Grant.   
 
Background:   
 
On June 3, 2020, the McMinnville Urban Renewal Advisory Committee voted to initiate a targeted 
Façade Improvement Grant program for the Urban Renewal District to temporarily change the 
parameters of the Façade Improvement Grant to make it more favorable to property owners and require 
much less capital match to help their business tenants draw attention back to their businesses with 
cosmetic improvements to their building.   
 
A mailing was sent out to all property owners in the district introducing the program.  (See attached).  
The interest in the program has been considerable.  This is the first review of applications that were 
submitted in the past month.  Many more property owners are currently putting together projects and 
plan to submit applications in the upcoming months.    
 
Discussion:  
 
There are several different tests for determining a qualifying project for the program as described 
below.  These tests have been reviewed and are identified on the attached spreadsheet. 
 
Eligible Property: 
 

1. Property owners of commercial or industrial zoned buildings within the District. 
2. Business owners or tenants of commercial or industrial zoned buildings within the 

District with property owner consent. 

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/


 
 

 P a g e  | 2 

 
Ineligible Property: 
 
The following types of property are not eligible for funding:  

1. Tax delinquent property within the Urban Renewal District. 
2. Property in litigation. 
3. Property in condemnation or receivership. 
4. Property owned by religious groups. 
5. Property owned by 501(c)3 nonprofit organizations on which taxes are not being paid. 
6. Properties on which taxes are being paid, but have nonprofit use, such as schools, 

charities, clubs, etc. 
7. Exclusively residential buildings. 
8. Daycare centers. 

 
Staff Notes:  Several non-profit property owners with for-profit tenants that pay property taxes 
proportionally based on the for-profit tenant space have asked about eligibility.  Included in this batch of 
applications, BR FIG 6-20, is the Knights of Pythias application.  In addition, the Gallery Theater is 
interested in pursuing a project as well but has not yet applied.   
 
Eligible Projects: 
 
The types of eligible projects include:  
 

1. Repair, restoration, or installation of exterior masonry and siding materials. 
2. Repair, replacement, or installation of awnings, windows, trim, doors, gutters, downspouts, 

stone or brick, or other architectural details. 
3. Repair or replacement of exterior lighting attached to a building or illuminating a sign. 
4. Repair or construction of entryways. 
5. Cleaning, preparation, and painting of exterior walls and trim in conformance with the 

approved color palette. 
6. Removal of barriers to access for people with disabilities. 
7. Removal, replacement, or repair of exterior wall, freestanding, or projecting signs. 
8. Other improvements as approved. 

 
Staff Notes:  There are several applications that are not property improvements but are rather site 
improvements or maintenance activities.  Those have been noted on the excel spreadsheet as 
potentially eligible under eligibility criteria #8, “Other improvements as approved”.  (BR FIG 1-20,  
BR FIG 3-20, BR FIG 5-20).  Urban renewal funds are intended to fund capital improvement projects 
that add taxable value to the property or improves the overall sense of place of a distressed area so 
that all property values improve.   
 
Grant Request and Match Requirement:  Maximum grant request of $5,000 with a 10% match 
requirement. 
 
Review Criteria: 
 
All projects will be reviewed based on the following criteria:  
 

1. Positive impact of the project on the aesthetic appearance of the building. 
2. Positive impact of the project on the overall streetscape. 
3. Preservation and enhancement of the architectural integrity of the building. 
4. Positive contribution of the project on the urban renewal effort. 
5. Amount of additional investment leveraged by the grant. 



 
 

 P a g e  | 3 

6. Compliance with applicable design guidelines and standards. 
7. Evidence of financial ability to meet matching requirements (e.g., bank statement, loan 

commitment letter, etc.) 
 
Staff Notes:  Staff has provided a spreadsheet identifying how each application meets all of the different 
tests of the program, including a Review Criteria Scorecard (attached) that identifies how each 
application meets or does not meet the review criteria and a scoring system for each criteria.   
 
The results of the Review Criteria Scorecard are below: 

Application Number Review Criteria 
Score 

BR FIG 4-20 10 
BR FIG 6-20 10 
BR FIG 7-20 10 
BR FIG 9-20 10 
BR FIG 10-20 9 
BR FIG 8-20 9 
BR FIG 2-20 9 
BR FIG 1-20 5 
BR FIG 3-20 4 
BR FIG 5-20 3 

 
Attachments: 
 

• Grant Application Tracker Spreadsheet 
• Review Criteria Spreadsheet 
• Business Recovery Façade Improvement Grant Applications 

o BR FIG 1-20 
o BR FIG 2-20 
o BR FIG 3-20 
o BR FIG 4-20 
o BR FIG 5-20 
o BR FIG 6-20 
o BR FIG 7-20 
o BR FIG 8-20 
o BR FIG 9-20 
o BR FIG 10-20 

• Program Summary and Application 
• Letter of Introduction 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is currently $175,000 allocated to the Property Assistance Program in the FY 2020/21 Urban 
Renewal Agency budget.  Currently $71,000 of that $175,000 is allocated to the Granary Row project.   
 
This first round of applications represents a total request of $38,800.87, which if fully funded would 
leave $65,199.13 for the property assistance program in FY 2020/21. 
 
 



Business Recovery FIG Tracker

Application Number Date Received Applicant Name Contact Info Property Total Project Estimate Grant Amount Matching Funds Project Desciption Approved Date Contract Completion Reimbursement Date

BRFIG 1-20 7/21/2020 Rob Stephenson (Odd Fellows LLC) 503-434-0114
roberthstephenson@me.com

507 NE Davis
R4421BC01700 $5,415 $4,874 $542

Install Backlow Prevetor for Irragation
Replant fron landscape/barkdust

BRFIG 2-20 7/21/2020 Rob Stephenson (Odd Fellows LLC) 503-434-0114
roberthstephenson@me.com

305 NE Ford
R4421BC05200 $2,025.00 $1,822.50 $202.50

Pressure wash lower building area/clean awnings
Paint 2' up from sidewalk

BRFIG 3-20 7/21/2020 Rob Stephenson (Odd Fellows LLC) 503-434-0114
roberthstephenson@me.com

375 NE Ford Street (Atticus Hotel)
R4421BC04700 $1,250 $1,125 $125

Clean Awnings

BRFIG 4-20 7/24/2020 Gary Sanders 503-998-3805
garysanders@gmail.com

250 NE Third Street
R4421BC07200 $6,674 $5,000 $1,674

Presuure wash/Prep/Caulk
Paint

BRFIG 5-20 7/2/2020 Kaylee Johnson/ Denny Elmer kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com 703 NE Third Street
R4421BD05200 $10,530 $5,000 $5,530

Pave Parking lot

BRFIG 6-20 7/23/2020 Lee Vasquez (Knights of Pythias) 503-550-5000
lnevasquez@aol.com

334 NE 3rd Street
R4417DB05600 $6,327 $5,000 $1,327

Pressure wash building/awnings
New Awning
Caulk/Prep/Paint Biuilding Façade

BRFIG 7-20 7/27/2020 Ed DeRaeve 503-437-3329
edderaeve@gmail.com

1206 NE 11th Way
R4416DC07001 $6,700 $5,000 $1,700

Pressure wash/Prep/Caulk
Paint

BRFIG 8-20 7/27/2020 Marylin Switzer 503-435-7767
mswitzermd@gmail.com

344 NE Galloway
R4421BD05100 $3,461 $3,114.90 $346.10

Replace Awning
Replace Front Door

BRFIG 9-20 7/27/2020 George and Jenifer Abdelnour 503-474-8253
g.w.abdelnour@gmail.com

220 NE 7th Street
R4421DB18401 $9,637 $5,000 $5,637

Paint
New Awnings
Post for hanging baskets

BRFIG 10-20 7/28/2020 Robin Sturn 503-472-7863
drsturn@gmail.com

338 NE Davis Street
R4421BC05500 $3,183.30 $2,864.97 $318.33

Replace tiles on steps.







Business Recovery FIG

Date Received Applicant Name Property Total Project Estimate Grant Request Match Amount Eligible Property Meets Eligability # Notes
Review Criteria 

Score
Project Desciption

BRFIG 1-20 Rob Stephenson (Odd Fellows LLC) 507 NE Davis
R4421BC01700 $5,415.00 $4,873.50 $541.50 Y 8 5

Install Backlow Preventor for Irragation
Replant fron landscape/barkdust

BRFIG 2-20 Rob Stephenson (Odd Fellows LLC) 305 NE Ford
R4421BC05200 $2,025.00 $1,822.50 $202.50 Y 5 9

Pressure wash lower building area/clean awnings
Paint 2' up from sidewalk

BRFIG 3-20 Rob Stephenson (Odd Fellows LLC) 375 NE Ford Street (Atticus Hotel)
R4421BC04700 $1,250.00 $1,125.00 $125.00 Y 8 4

Clean Awnings

BRFIG 4-20 Gary Sanders 250 NE Third Street
R4421BC07200 $6,674.00 $5,000.00 $1,674.00 Y 5 10

Presuure wash/Prep/Caulk
Paint

BRFIG 5-20 Kaylee Johnson/ Denny Elmer 703 NE Third Street
R4421BD05200 $10,530.00 $5,000.00 $5,530.00 Y 8 3

Pave Parking lot

BRFIG 6-20 Lee Vasquez (Knights of Pythias) 334 NE 3rd Street
R4417DB05600 $6,327.00 $5,000.00 $1,327.00 Y 5

Needs further 
design review.

10
Pressure wash building/awnings
New Awning
Caulk/Prep/Paint Biuilding Façade

BRFIG 7-20 Ed DeRaeve 1206 NE 11th Way
R4416DC07001 $6,700.00 $5,000.00 $1,700.00 Y 5 10

Pressure wash/Prep/Caulk
Paint

BRFIG 8-20 Marylin Switzer 344 NE Galloway
R4421BD05100 $3,461.00 $3,114.90 $346.10 Y 2 9

Replace Awning
Replace Front Door

BRFIG 9-20 George and Jenifer Abdelnour 220 NE 7th Street
R4421DB18401 $9,637.00 $5,000.00 $5,637.00 Y 1 10

Paint
New Awnings
Post for hanging baskets

BRFIG 10-20 Robin Sturn 338 NE Davis Street
R4421BC05500 $3,183.30 $2,864.97 $318.33 Y 5 9

Replace tiles on steps.



REVIEW CRITERIA SCORE: 

 

Review Criteria 1-20 2-20 3-20 4-20 5-20 6-20 7-20 8-20 9-20 10-20 
Postive impact of the project on the aesthetic 
appearance of the building. 

1 2 1 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 

Positive impact of the project on the overall 
streetscape. 

1 2 1 2 n/a 2 2 2 2 2 

Preservation and enhancement of the 
architectural integrity of the building. 

n/a 1 n/a 1 n/a 1 1 1 1 1 

Positive contribution of the project on the 
urban renewal effort. 

2 2 1 2 n/a 2 2 2 2 2 

Amount of additional investment leveraged by 
the grant. 

1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 

Compliance with applicable design guidelines 
and standards. 

n/a 1 n/a 1 n/a 1 1 1 1 1 

Evidence of financial ability to meet matching 
requirements (e.g. bank statement, loan 
commitment letter, etc.) 

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

TOTAL:    5 9 4 10 3 10 10 9 10 9 
 

Scoring Legend: 

High = 3 points 

Medium = 2 Points 

Low = 1 Point 







































































































From: Kaylee Johnson
To: Sean Kelso
Subject: Re: Facade Improvement Grant Application
Date: Monday, July 27, 2020 9:42:02 AM
Attachments: Scan.pdf

This message originated outside of the City of McMinnville.

Hey Sean! 

Thank you so much for your email! I'll reattach the documents and definitely let me know if
you are still experiencing any trouble with the attachments. 
The only document not added to this email was the work estimate. 

Hopefully this helps! 

Stay cool out there! 

On Mon, Jul 27, 2020 at 8:53 AM Sean Kelso <Sean.Kelso@mcminnvilleoregon.gov> wrote:

Good morning Kaylee,

 

I received a forward message from heather Richards about your Façade Improvement Grant
Application.

 

The email that I received with the photos of your project will not open on my City computer. I am
only able to open the work estimate. Would you please try resending them to me.

 

Thank you,

 

Sean Kelso

503-434-7314

 

From: Kaylee Johnson [mailto:kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, July 1, 2020 5:09 PM
To: Heather Richards <Heather.Richards@mcminnvilleoregon.gov>
Subject: Fwd: Facade Improvement Grant Application

mailto:kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com
mailto:Sean.Kelso@mcminnvilleoregon.gov
mailto:Sean.Kelso@mcminnvilleoregon.gov
mailto:kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com
mailto:Heather.Richards@mcminnvilleoregon.gov















 

Your attachments have been security checked by Mimecast Attachment Protection. Files where no threat or
malware was detected are attached.

Hi Heather, 

 

Attached is the application for the Facade Improvement Grant for the Douglas On Third. I've
attached the signed paperwork, photos of the surrounding area, and also a quote of labor
and material cost. Below I've attached our Project Description as well.

 

Please let me know if you have any questions or if any additional information is needed. 

 

Description of Project Use of Funds:

The Douglas On Third is requesting assistance via the Business Recovery Façade Improvement
Grant to repave our parking lot.

Currently this space is an uneven gravel lot. It is used daily by both out of town guests and various
employees of multiple downtown businesses. Currently the conditions prove difficult for both our
guests and the employees. When it rains water builds up in the back making the gravel all the more
uneven and difficult to maneuver. Throughout the years, contrary to our diligent work and labors
of upkeep, the condition of the parking lot has only continued to worsen. Attached you will find a
proposed bid from Pav Co, Paving Company LLC which outlines the labor and materials cost for
our project. We are requesting $5,000 from the Improvement Grant and will be contributing
$5,530 of our own funds to the project.

Our main objective is to level and pave the back lot in its entirety adding to the overall function
and appearance.  By paving the lot we will assist in aiding the limited parking we have in the
downtown district by adding additional safe and convenient parking opportunities.

 

Thank you kindly!

 

 

Preview attachment Scan.pdf

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif


Scan.pdf

2.9 MB

 

 

--

 

Kaylee Johnson

Marketing Director 

760-524-8939

Kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com

Kaylee@craftmarkinc.com

--

Kaylee Johnson

Marketing Director 

760-524-8939

Kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com

Kaylee@craftmarkinc.com

-- 
Kaylee Johnson

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/iitgC0Rm3XiMvnwCwvdif
mailto:Kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com
mailto:Kaylee@craftmarkinc.com
mailto:Kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com
mailto:Kaylee@craftmarkinc.com


Marketing Director 
760-524-8939
Kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com
Kaylee@craftmarkinc.com

mailto:Kayleegemmjohnson@gmail.com
mailto:Kaylee@craftmarkinc.com
































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

231 NE Fifth Street  •  McMinnville, Oregon 97128  • www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov  

Our Mission:  Providing excellent customer service, public engagement, and proactive planning programs to 
promote McMinnville as the most livable and prosperous city in the state of Oregon now and into the future. 

 

 
June 23, 2020 
 
TO: Property Owner in the McMinnville Urban Renewal District 
 
RE: BUSINESS RECOVERY FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT OPPORTUNITY,  

UP TO $5,000, 10% MATCH, LIMITED TIME JULY 1, 2020 – JULY 1, 2021. 
 
We know that these are unprecedented times and that businesses and commercial property 
owners have been unduly impacted by the recent COVID-19 measures.  Recently the McMinnville 
Urban Renewal Advisory Committee (MURAC) voted to temporarily change the parameters of 
their Façade Improvement Grant to make it more favorable to property owners and require much 
less capital match so that you can protect your cash flow yet still make improvements to your 
property to help your tenants.   
 
As a property owner in the McMinnville Urban Renewal District you have access to a Façade 
Improvement Grant program.  Historically, the program has provided up to $5,000 of matching 
grant funds for qualifying exterior façade improvement projects.  For one year, the agency is going 
to reduce the match requirement from 50% of the total project costs to just 10% of the total project 
costs.   
 
If you have been thinking of painting your building, replacing your awning, developing new 
signage programs, etc., this is the opportunity to do that and only pay for 10% of the improvement.  
As people have developed new habits of staying home it will be important to help draw attention 
back to our city center businesses.  One good way to do that is investing in a cosmetic refresh of 
the outside of the building.   
 
All projects need to meet specific criteria that are outlined in the attached program summary.  I 
encourage you to contact me to discuss your project so that we can see how to ensure it meets 
the criteria for the grants.  We have also included an application for you to use given the short 
timeframe for the program.   
 
We want to help you and your tenants.  Urban renewal dollars cannot be invested in business 
operations but it can be invested in property assistance through brick and mortar capital 
improvement projects on your building.  If there is a way that we can help you help your tenants 
by sprucing up their storefront façade, we want to be able to be there for you and your tenant. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Heather Richards, PCED 
Planning Director 
503-434-7311 

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/


Business Recovery Façade Improvement Grant Program Information Page | 1 

CITY OF MCMINNVILLE 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

231 NE FIFTH STREET 
MCMINNVILLE, OR  97128 

503-434-7311
www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov 

MCMINNVILLE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
BUSINESS RECOVERY FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT 

PROGRAM SUMMARY AND APPLICATION 
The Business Recovery Façade Improvement Grant Program is a grant program of the 
City of McMinnville Urban Renewal Agency designed to help property owners invest in their 
buildings to assist their tenants in recovering from COVID closures.  The maximum individual 
grant is limited to $5,000.  The match requirement is only 10%.  Funds will be on a first-come, 
first-served basis and this program will be available July 1, 2020 - July 1, 2021.  

The purposes of the Façade Improvement Grant Program are: 

1. To improve the aesthetic appearance of the exterior facades of existing buildings and
businesses in the District;

2. To restore the unique historic character of buildings in the District as much as
practicable; and

3. To encourage private investment in District properties and businesses.

Eligibility: 
The following persons are eligible to apply and receive grant funds: 

1. Property owners of commercial or industrial zoned buildings within the District.
2. Business owners or tenants of commercial or industrial zoned buildings within the

District with property owner consent.

Ineligible Property: 
The following types of property are not eligible for funding: 

1. Tax delinquent property within the Urban Renewal District.
2. Property in litigation.
3. Property in condemnation or receivership.
4. Property owned by religious groups.
5. Property owned by 501(c)3 nonprofit organizations on which taxes are not being paid.
6. Properties on which taxes are being paid, but have nonprofit use, such as schools,

charities, clubs, etc.
7. Exclusively residential buildings.
8. Daycare centers.



Business Recovery Façade Improvement Grant Program Information Page | 2 

Eligible Improvements: 
Funds may be used for existing exterior façade improvements on commercial and industrial 
zoned buildings within the District in compliance with the McMinnville Zoning Ordinance and 
NE Gateway Planned Development Overlay standards.  For the purpose of this program, 
“façade” includes the exterior of any street-facing building wall, but does not include the 
building’s interior, roofing, signs, structural improvements, or other site improvements except 
as noted below.   

The types of eligible projects include: 

1. Repair, restoration, or installation of exterior masonry and siding materials.
2. Repair, replacement, or installation of awnings, windows, trim, doors, gutters,

downspouts, stone or brick, or other architectural details.
3. Repair or replacement of exterior lighting attached to a building or illuminating a sign.
4. Repair or construction of entryways.
5. Cleaning, preparation, and painting of exterior walls and trim in conformance with the

approved color palette.
6. Removal of barriers to access for people with disabilities.
7. Removal, replacement, or repair of exterior wall, freestanding, or projecting signs.
8. Other improvements as approved.

Financing: 
The maximum grant award for a single project is $5,000.  A minimum private match of 
10% of the grant amount is required.   

Application Process: 
The application process includes the following steps: 

1. Applicant to review Downtown Design Guidelines and Standards in Chapter 17.59 of
the McMinnville Zoning Ordinance, Historic Resources Ordinance, or the NE Gateway
Planned Development Overlay, as applicable.

2. Applicant prepares a written description of proposed improvements including cost
estimates, and information regarding colors, materials, and other elements necessary
to describe the proposed improvement and demonstrate compliance with the applicable
design guidelines.

3. Applicant schedules a grant application meeting with the Planning Director to discuss
proposed improvements.  City staff will explain grant application requirements.

4. Applicant submits a grant application with supporting documentation as outlined in the
grant application meeting.

5. Projects requiring further review as specified in Chapter 17.59 of the zoning ordinance,
Historic Resources Ordinance, or NE Gateway Planned Development are required to
complete those reviews prior to submittal of a grant application.

6. Applications received after the deadline for submittal will not be considered.



Business Recovery Façade Improvement Grant Program Information Page | 3 

General Conditions: 
1. Approval of grant applications is contingent upon available funds.
2. Funding is limited to one façade and one sign grant per property per year.
3. All projects shall conform to the design standards of Chapter 17.59 of the McMinnville

Zoning Ordinance and NE Gateway Planned Development Overlay Ordinance.   As
such, some projects may require staff or Historic Landmark Committee review prior to
submittal of a grant application.

4. Once an application is approved, the applicant will be required to enter into a Grant
Approval Agreement with the Urban Renewal Agency.

5. Construction may begin only after an application is approved.  Any work completed
prior to formal approval and signing of the Grant Agreement may not be eligible for
grant reimbursement.

6. All construction contractors shall have a valid license in the State of Oregon.
7. Only projects utilizing a licensed contractor will be eligible for reimbursement of labor

costs.  Projects not completed by a licensed contractor are eligible for material costs
only.

8. Projects are required to be completed within one (1) year from the date of grant
approval.

9. Applicants are responsible for obtaining all necessary permits prior to conducting work.
10. The applicant must submit before and after color photos of the project.
11. Additional conditions may be included with the grant approval.

Review Process:  
Grant applications are reviewed initially by the McMinnville Planning Director to determine 
eligibility and consistency with the submittal requirements of this grant program.  Applications 
meeting these requirements are then forwarded to the McMinnville Urban Renewal Advisory 
Committee for review and decision at a regularly scheduled meeting of the committee. 

Review Criteria: 
All projects will be reviewed based on the following criteria: 

1. Positive impact of the project on the aesthetic appearance of the building.
2. Positive impact of the project on the overall streetscape.
3. Preservation and enhancement of the architectural integrity of the building.
4. Positive contribution of the project on the urban renewal effort.
5. Amount of additional investment leveraged by the grant.
6. Compliance with applicable design guidelines and standards.
7. Evidence of financial ability to meet matching requirements (e.g., bank statement, loan

commitment letter, etc.)



Façade Improvement Grant Program Information Page | 4 

Reimbursement Procedure: 
Project reimbursement will occur based on the following procedures: 

1. Reimbursement will occur only after construction is complete and a city inspection has
been conducted.

2. Upon project completion, city staff should be contacted to conduct a site inspection.
3. Detailed written invoice(s) or itemized receipts and proof of payment (e.g., cancelled

checks) shall be provided with all reimbursement requests.
4. If a licensed contractor was not used, receipts for materials shall be provided.
5. Funds will be dispersed within three (3) to six (6) weeks following submittal and

verification of all documentation.

The Agency reserves the right to refuse reimbursements in whole or in part for work that: 

1. Does not conform to the program or design guidelines.
2. Does not conform to the proposal submitted with the application and authorized by the

Agency.
3. Are not commensurate with the workmanship and cost customary to the industry.
4. Is not completed within one year.  (Requests for extension will be considered only if

made in writing and progress towards completion has been demonstrated).
5. Does not conform to the terms of the grant agreement.

Further Information Contact: 

Heather Richards 
Planning Director 
City of McMinnville 
231 NE 5th Street 
Ph.  (503) 434-7311 
Email heather.richards@mcminnvilleoregon.gov 

mailto:heather.richards@mcminnvilleoregon.gov


McMinnville Urban Renewal Agency 
FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT 

McMinnville Urban Renewal Agency 
c/o Planning Department  
231 NE Fifth Street ○ McMinnville, OR  97128 
(503) 434-7311 Office ○ (503) 474-4955 Fax
www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov

Applicant Information 
Applicant is:  Property Owner  Tenant  Option Holder  Other

Applicant Name Phone 

Contact Name  Phone 
(If different than above) 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Contact Email 

Property Owner Information 

Property Owner Name Phone 
(If different than above) 

Contact Name Phone 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Contact Email 

Site Location and Description 
(If metes and bounds description, indicate on separate sheet) 

Business Name 

Property Address 

Assessor Map No. R4 - - 

Office Use Only: 

File No. 

Date Received 

Received by 

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/


PROJECT INFORMATION: 

Estimated Project Start Date: Estimated Project Completion Date: _____________  

$ ___________________________________  
$ ___________________________________  

Grant Amount Requested (no more than $5,000): 
Applicant Matching Funds: 
Total Project Costs: $ ___________________________________  
Note:  The total grant amount requested should equal or exceed the matching funds total. 

Project Budget 

Attach documentation for costs such as contractor’s bids or detailed estimate for materials and labor 
costs.  (Attach additional sheets as needed) 

Labor Materials 
Purpose 

(i.e. painting, awning, repair) Estimated Cost 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total Project Costs: $ 



Description of Project/Use of Funds 

Describe below all proposed improvements included in your project to include a summary of the 
building’s current condition, areas to be improved and how, as well as any proposed materials or 
colors.  Please enclose pictures, drawings, as necessary to help describe the work.  (Attach additional 
sheets as needed) 

In addition to this completed application, the applicant must provide the following: 

 Digital photographs of the existing building façade.

 Photos, plans, and/or sketches of the proposed improvements

 Quotes, fee proposal, and any other information that supports the proposed budget.

I agree to comply with the guidelines and standards of the McMinnville Urban Renewal 
Agency’s Façade Improvement Grant Program and I understand that this is a voluntary 
program, under which the City has the right to approve or deny any project or proposal or 
portions thereof. 

Applicant Signature Print Name Date 

Owner (if different) Signature Print Name Date 



McMinnville Urban Renewal Agency 
FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT 

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

AND 

OWNER AUTHORIZATION FOR TENANT TO CARRY OUT FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT 
AND/OR REHABILITATION PROJECT 

I, ______________________________ hereby authorize ____________________ to 

carry out improvements as specified in the accompanying Façade Improvement Grant 

Application, on my property located at ____________________________________, 

which is within the City of McMinnville’s Urban Renewal District. 

I also agree to hold harmless the City of McMinnville in the event of property damage or physical 
injury as a result of working on the aforementioned project. 

_______________________________ ______________________ 
Property Owner Date 

_______________________________ 
Notary 

Return To: 
Heather Richards 
Planning Director 
City of McMinnville 
231 NE 5th Street 
McMinnville, OR  97128 
Phone: (503) 434-7311 
Fax: (503) 434-4955 
E-mail: heather.richards@mcminnvilleoregon.gov

mailto:heather.richards@mcminnvilleoregon.gov


7 

Map of McMinnville Urban Renewal Area with Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Designations


	MURAC Agenda 08.05.20
	MURAC 5.6.20_Minutes_draft
	Exhibit 2 FIG Staff Report
	Facade Improvement Grant Tracker
	Tracker
	Spreadsheet1

	REVIEW CRITERIA SCORE SHEET
	BRFIG1-20(507 NE Davis Street)
	BRFIG2-20(305 NE Ford Street)
	BRFIG3-20(375 NE Ford St)
	BRFIG4-20(250 nE Third Street)
	BRFIG4-20(250 nE Third Street)
	BRFIG4-20(250 nE Third Street)
	Building Exterior Color Scheme
	IMG_0206[1]
	IMG_0207[1]
	IMG_0208[1]
	IMG_0209[1]
	IMG_0210[1]
	IMG_0211[1]
	IMG_0213[1]

	IMG_0206[1]
	IMG_0207[1]
	IMG_0208[1]
	IMG_0209[1]
	IMG_0210[1]
	IMG_0211[1]
	IMG_0213[1]
	Building Exterior Color Scheme

	BRFIG5-20(703 NE THIRD)
	BRFIG5-20(703 NE THIRD)
	Email job Description(The Douglas)
	IMG_8516
	IMG_8518
	IMG_8519
	IMG_8520
	IMG_8522
	WORK ESTIMATE

	BRFIG6-20-Knight if Pythias(334 NE 3rd St)
	BRFIG7-20(1206 NE 11th Way)
	BRFIG8-20(344 NE Galloway)
	BRFIG9-20(220 NE 7th Street)
	BRFIG9-20(220 NE 7th Street)
	Front1
	Front2
	Rear of building form parkin lot

	BRFIG10-20(328 NE Davis Street)
	Business Recovery Facade Improvement Grant Letter of Introduction
	Business Recovery Facade Improvement Grant Program Summary and Application 06.22.20
	Facade Improvement Grant Program Summary and Application 03.24.17
	FIG Program Summary
	Facade Improvement Grant Application
	Applicant Information
	Property Owner Information
	Site Location and Description


	URA Map with Zoning




